
Cabinet 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Cabinet to be held as follows for the 
transaction of the business indicated.

If any member of the public wishes to raise a question or comment on any of the items 
listed, which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, 
by sending an email to  decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk
Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place. 

Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on 
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus

Sian Roxborough
Proper Officer

DATE: Tuesday, 25 August 2020

TIME: 10.00 am

VENUE: https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3ameeting_Mjk5MzAwMGUtOWQwNS00Zjg3LWJkNWYtZmMzZDM1MGQ
wNTdm%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-
b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  Minutes of the previous meeting 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on the 28 July 2020.

(Pages 1 - 6)

4  PART 2 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC: 

Officers consider that the following item(s) contain exempt information 
as provided for in the Local Government Access to Information Act 
and that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information. Members are 
recommended to agree the necessary resolutions excluding the public 
from the meeting during consideration of these items.

Public Document Pack

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk
https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus


4a Housing Delivery Options - Derive Housing Group structure proposals 

Statutory Deputy City Mayor

(Pages 7 - 76)

5  Any other urgent business 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3318
Karen Berry, Democratic Services Manager E-Mail: karen.berry@salford.gov.uk



1

Cabinet 

Held on Tuesday 28 July 2020
(This was a Microsoft Live Teams meeting)

Present

Paul Dennett                      City Mayor (in the chair)
Tracy Kelly                         Statutory Deputy City Mayor 
John Merry, CBE                Deputy City Mayor 

Lead Members:
Bill Hinds                            Lead Member for Finance and Support Services
David Lancaster, MBE       Environment and Community Safety
Gina Reynolds                   Adult Services, Health and Wellbeing
Derek Antrobus                  Planning and Sustainable Development
Paula Boshell                     Anti-Poverty, Neighbourhoods, Financial Inclusion & Equalities

Executive Support Members (at the invitation of the City Mayor):
Mike McCusker                   Planning and sustainable Development
Barbara Bentham               Workforce and Industrial Relations
Sharmina August                Equalities, Communities and Social Impact
Roger Jones                       Transport
Stephen Coen                     Culture, Leisure and Sport
Jim Cammell                       Social Care and Mental Health

Officers:
Jim Taylor                         Chief Executive
Debbie Brown                   Strategic Director, Service Reform
Sian Roxborough              City Solicitor
Ben Dolan                         Strategic Director, Place
Sam Betts                         Assistant Director
Muna Abdel Aziz               Director, Public Health
Joanne Hardman              Chief Finance Officer
Jacquie Russell                Assistant Director Policy
Jeanette Staley                 Head of Community Safety
Marie Shields                    Neighbourhood Manager
Peter Openshaw               Assistant Director, Environment and Community Safety
Bernie Vaudrey                 Head of Business Investment and Programmes 
Karen Berry                       Democratic Service Manager

1.         Apologies for absence
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Walsh, from officers 
Charlotte Ramsden.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



2

2. Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest.

 3. Minutes of proceedings
The minutes of the meeting held on 26 May 2020, were approved as a correct record.

4.       Salford Quays – Anti-Social Behaviour
Councillor Lancaster, Lead Member for Environment and Community Safety 
introduced the item. The report sets out the progress made in respect of the 
implementation of a crime and antisocial behaviour plan for the Quays, following 
recent high numbers of people visiting the area during periods of good weather and 
easing of lock down measures.
Councillor Lancaster detailed some of the deterrents introduced, including increased 
patrols, use of CCTV, enforcements letters and anti-climb paint on Detroit Bridge.

Marie Shields, Neighbourhood Manager provided an update on actions in response to 
resident complaints of antisocial behaviour such as unauthorised swimming, jumping from 
bridges, associated noise, litter and lack of social distancing amongst the large groups of 
people congregating.
The report submitted summarises the challenges and action taken over recent 
weeks to address these issues.

To date, 41 warning letters have been issued. All letters have been issued following 
identification via CCTV. Some individuals have been identified as returning to the 
area to breach PSPO prohibitions. In these cases, enforcement will be escalated to 
Acceptable Behaviour Meetings with parents, Regulatory Services and Greater 
Manchester Police.

Progress is being made regarding the installation of a public announcement system. 
Members were assured that the positioning of the system is at height and connected 
to the CCTV equipment, which has not been subject to vandalism.

Officers reported on the strong links with the local communities and support of the 
targeted approach and enforcements actions.

A Communications Plan has been introduced; various social media fields are being 
utilised including the local radio station.

Links have been formed with local schools. Oasis Academy has been working 
closely with the council, GMP and other partners. Positive reactions have been 
received from parents.

Jeanette Staley, Head of Community Safety reported that some of the young people 
gathering at The Quays are from out of the borough. Therefore, GMP are in liaison 
with other authorities.

In response to a question raised by Councillor August; it was explained that the 
Youth Service are involved in engaging with young people in the area throughout the 
week and some weekends for events. However, as they are a non-statutory service 

Page 2



3

have been subject to significant efficiencies and it remains an ongoing challenge to 
resource.

The Youth Council have been preparing some videos ‘alternatives to staying cool’, 
which are in the final editing stages.

The Fire and Rescue Service are also having an input at The Quays. 

Muna Abdel Aziz, Director, Public Health provided an overview of the current Public 
Health England advice and the need to encourage young people to adhere to the 
safe social distancing measures to try and contain Covid 19.

Councillor Lancaster added that he has made a request to GMP for Specials to be 
assigned to The Quays at peak times and extra resources from other Divisions.

The report prompted the following observation:
 Suggested wider use of social media, other than just Facebook and twitter 

feeds.

The City Mayor and members of Cabinet acknowledged the positive response and 
thanked officers and all partners for working with the residents in trying to alleviate 
the antisocial behaviour at The Quays.

RESOLVED: THAT, the City Mayor asked the report to be shared with all residents 
who have made contact as a result of the ASB.

5.     Update Report on Greater Manchester's Clean Air Plan: Tackling Nitrogen 
Dioxide Exceedances at the Roadside 
Councillor Antrobus, Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development 
introduced the item. The report sets out the progress that has been made following 
the Government’s response to Greater Manchester’s Outline Business Case to 
tackle Nitrogen Dioxide Exceedances at the Roadside (OBC), and the implications of
pandemic management policies.
Councillor Antrobus added that they will continue to push Government to make 
further funding available.

Ben Dolan, Strategic Director provided a detailed overview of the report, highlighting 
the following key aspects:

 The funding asks have been revised as follows:

o A Clean Commercial Vehicle Fund of c.£98m to provide financial 
support for the upgrade of light and heavy goods vehicles, minibuses 
and coaches, which will be targeted to support smaller local 
businesses, sole traders and the voluntary sector, registered in Greater 
Manchester; 

Page 3



4

o The Hardship Fund of c.£10m to support individuals, companies and 
organisations who are assessed to be most vulnerable to socio-
economic impacts from the CAZ

 TfGM continue to make representations to Government on enforcing 
Highways England to take appropriate steps to mitigate on its assets.;

 Midst Covid, steer given to encourage GM to continue preparations to be ready 
to launch as soon as practicable;

 an overview of progress since the last update regarding ministerial 
correspondence, as detailed in paragraph 6 of the report submitted;

 Government will provide an initial tranche of funding of £41m for grants or 
loans;

 The Government will not support electric vehicle charging infrastructure 
through Clean Air monies but have committed to work with GM on securing 
funding from the Office for Low Emission Vehicles;

 TfGM is seeking confirmation that the funding award for Bus Retrofit is a 
continuation of Clean Bus Technology Funds to be distributed as soon as 
possible;

 agreed position that the GM Local Authorities’ decision to commence a public 
consultation should be taken once there is a clear timeframe for exiting 
lockdown and moving to the next phase of the Covid-19 response.

The report prompted the following observations:
 The need for Highways England to take appropriate steps to mitigate on its 

assets, contributors to poor air quality;
 Welcome the postponement in upgrading/changing of vehicles. However, 

concerns remain regarding economic impacts;
 Need to further ask for funding of rapid charge points.

RESOLVED: THAT, the City Mayor in consultation with Cabinet:

1. Noted the progress of the Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan;

2. Noted the progress in the development of the Clean Commercial Vehicle and
Hardship funds;

3. Noted the initial funding award of £41m for clean vehicle funds to award grants or
loans to eligible businesses;

4. Noted the Government has accepted the need for vehicle replacement funds for
Hackney Carriages, and Light Goods Vehicles, but has requested further
development of shared evidence on the needs within that complex sector before
responding, also Government does not support the sustainable journeys
measure;

5. Noted that TfGM is seeking confirmation that the funding award for Bus Retrofit is
a continuation of Clean Bus Technology Funds to be distributed as soon as
possible as per previous arrangements;

6. Noted the Government will not support electric vehicle charging infrastructure

Page 4



5

through Clean Air monies but have committed to work with GM on securing
funding from the Office for Low Emission Vehicles (OLEV);

7. Agreed the position that the GM Local Authorities will move to a statutory public
consultation on the GM Clean Air Plan as soon as reasonably practicable;

8. Further agreed the position that the GM Local Authorities’ decision to commence a
public consultation should be taken once there is a clear timeframe for exiting
lockdown and moving to the next phase of the Covid-19 response;

9. Noted the implementation of a GM CAZ is delayed to 2022 with a revised
implementation date to be confirmed in the consultation commencement report;2
10.Note the DfT’s positioning paper “Decarbonising Transport – Setting the
Challenge”;

11.Noted the assessment of the possible impacts of Covid-19 to inform a technical
briefing note for decision makers; and

12.Noted that the GM local Authorities intend to consult on GM’s proposed Minimum
Licensing Standards (MLS) alongside the Clean Air Plan consultation, and agree
the position for consultation on when taxi/PHV fleets should be Zero Emission
Capable.

6.       Any other business.
No items raised.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972

Name of Report Housing Delivery 
Options –Derive Housing Group 
structure proposals 

Committee - Cabinet
Date 25th August 2020

Category of exemption applied: Commercial confidentiality in relation to 
intellectual property rights and Costs of implementation.

Public Interest Test Questionnaire
This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality.

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in 
public debate about current issues?

Yes

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions? 

Yes

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff?

No

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers? 

Yes

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives? 

Yes

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)  

No

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-
making or examples of malpractice?

No

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact 
occurred?

N/A

Page 7

Agenda Item 4a



FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information?

No

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information? 

Yes 

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation?

No

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving 
the public useful information? 

No

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or 
individuals at risk? 

No

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general 
would benefit more from information being withheld? 

 

Yes

Page 8



Justification of decision
(Please provide explicit reasoning)

The report details a complex legal solution to an issue that the City Council is 
looking to address -namely the establishment of a Company Structure that will 
provide the platform to deliver, hold and manage residential properties to 
support the Council’s ambition to deliver significant numbers of Affordable 
Housing across the City.
The report contains commercially sensitive information in relation to the 
proposed solution and also sets out the estimated costs for putting such 
arrangements into place.

Other documents attached- none

Name and Title: Peter Openshaw

Date: 17th August 2020

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4a Housing Delivery Options - Derive Housing Group structure proposals
	CM Report on Bevan Brittan Housing Delivery Options PO FINAL
	Housing Delivery Advice - v.5 Final Version - c


